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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (“the Club”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2010.

Principal activities

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse
racing in Hong Kong and in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing,
football and lottery. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are shown on pages 169 to
170.

Financial statements

The results and appropriations of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 125. All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements are expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise
stated.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Club during the year are set out in notes
27 to 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Donations
During the year, the Group appropriated HK$1,500 million to The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust and donated HK$62 million for other charitable purposes.

Property, plant and equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Club are
shown in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Stewards
The Board of Stewards is listed on page 4 of this annual report.

Dr John C C Chan and Mr T Brian Stevenson were elected Chairman and Deputy
Chairman respectively immediately after the 2009 Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Dr Donald K T Li, Mr Philip N L
Chen, Mr Stephen Ip Shu Kwan and Dr Rita Fan Hsu Lai Tai will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. All four Stewards retiring by rotation, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.

Dr John C C Chan has decided to retire as Chairman and as a Steward of the Club at the
conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and his vacancy will be filled by
election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the
year under review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in
any contract of significance to the business of the Club or any of its subsidiaries.

Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Club were entered into or existed during the year.
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Auditors
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is
signed for and on behalf of the Board.

John C C Chan
Chairman
23 July 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the Members of The Hong Kong Jockey Club
(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the
“Club”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 125 to 170, which
comprise the consolidated and the Club’s statements of financial position as at 30 June
2010, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Stewards’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Stewards of the Club are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Stewards, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the Club as at 30 June 2010 and of the Group’s surplus and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountant
Hong Kong, 23 July 2010
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for the year ended 30 June

BEEAT in HK$ million Ff4 5 Note 2010 2009
(Fft s note 1) (Kt zEnote 1)
BSOS -] Amounts wagered 2.2 116,930 109,190
BEREZRA Betting and lottery revenue 4 21,154 20,144
BERRESBHER Betting and lottery duty (13,339) (12,735)
50T I ith B S A8 Payment to racing jurisdiction outside Hong Kong (39) (33)
BEHS Lotteries Fund (956) (964)
AR AE Net margin and commission 5 6,820 6,412
Hebg A Other revenue 6 1,958 1,789
8,778 8,201
PS5 W Operating costs 7 (6,311) (6,093)
K& Bk Operating surplus 2,467 2,108
FRA 2 W= Interest income from deposits 23 75
EERERRHAREALASH Surplus/(deficit) from securities investments and
Ber(EE) long-term investment portfolios 8 838 (1,151)
ERHESRENER (FR) Surplus/(deficit) from Contingency Fund investments 9 80 (1,157)
B 7% & A Finance costs (61) (28)
B BEER S (FE) Financial surplus/(deficit) 880 (2,261)
Fih Bt N T Share of loss of an associate 17 (8) (23)
Frh L EEFIEEEE Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity 18 (25) —
HKRHE BREZSETES Surplus/(deficit) before taxation, charitable
ZERRRERTERES donations to Charities Trust and transfer to
A B (EE) Contingency Fund 3,314 (176)
BRTEREFTSALERGTES Appropriation to The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust 10
—BRES — Allocations Fund (1,100) (500)
—EBXES — Capital Fund (400) _
MRE R RER S (EE) Surplus/(deficit) before taxation 1,814 (676)
BiE Taxation 11 (282) (241)
BREBRRENBERE (HB) Net surplus/(deficit) after appropriation and taxation 1,532 (917)
HRTHERAES Transfer to Contingency Fund 28 (80) 1,157
REBBHEBARERE Retained surplus transferred to Accumulated
Reserve 27 1,452 240
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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for the year ended 30 June

BEEAT in HK$ million Ff4 5 Note 2010 2009
BRRRRENZHERELS (HER) Net surplus/(deficit) after appropriation
and taxation 1,532 (917)
Hitt 2wk = Other comprehensive income
AREHENEERE Available-for-sale financial assets
B4 (E5E) Btk (Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of
BERESZRRPREES Debt securities and long-term
investment portfolios 27 (33) (1,104)
ERESRE Contingency Fund investments 28 449 (918)
BRESRBREAS Development Fund long-term
investment portfolios 29 46 (61)
B EBARRRN Realised losses/(gains) reclassified to
BIEE(KE) income statement
BEXESFRRARERS Debt securities and long-term
investment portfolios 27 24 (147)
ERAESRE Contingency Fund investments 28 630 156
M IRELR Currency translation differences 21 (2)
AEERBEEMEE R (BE) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year,
net of tax 1,137 (2,076)
AEEZ2EKZE (B L Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 2,669 (2,993)




Statement of Financial Position

B BHIR DL

~NAZ=+H at 30 June 474 Consolidated E&Club
BEBT in HK$ million [t 5F Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
FEREEE Non-current assets
Y RIEREEM Property, plant and equipment 13 4,176 3,878 3,344 3,108
HELHIBENLRE Leasehold land prepayments 14 586 602 566 582
REW*E Investment properties 15 4 5 4 5
MEBARKRE Investments in subsidiaries 16 — — 1,134 1,134
BMENTRE Investment in an associate 17 - 7 — —
HEEHEERE Investment in a jointly controlled entity 18 36 — — =
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments 28 10,562 9,403 10,562 9,403
REBREAS Long-term investment portfolios 19 10,861 9,797 8,952 8,013
RHEAFENRRIE Long-term prepayments 675 446 — =
Htm&EE Other assets 20 287 330 287 330
27,187 24,468 24,849 22,575
REEE Current assets
BRELFES Debt securities portfolio 21 1,401 1,592 1,401 1,592
EEEPNGEEE: =& Loans to subsidiaries 16 - — 1,152 465
HiRsERE Other current assets 22 639 639 390 388
FE UL B Bt B A B 1Y 7R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 16 — — 113 149
FEU B B N BRI R IE Amount due from an associate 17 11 — = =
HEITER Short-term deposits 23 3,631 3,755 3,083 3,193
WETER HEeREMREES Bank balances, cash and other liquid
funds 2,039 1,099 249 256
7,721 7,085 6,388 6,043
mEEE Current liabilities
g B E ™ Short-term loans 24 (466) (483) — =
FEAS BR FX % 78 WL Fh 8 Creditors and receipts in advance 25 (3,838) (3,189) (2,366) (2,113)
FEASF M B A B M8 Amounts due to subsidiaries 16 — — (3,094) (3,024)
FE 4 %5 18 Taxation payable (298) (276) (109) (84)
(4,602) (3,948) (5,569) (5,221)
mEBEEFH Net current assets 3,119 3,137 819 822
E =K Non-current liabilities
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 26 (48) (16) (58) (22)
30,258 27,589 25,610 208.357/%
15 Reserves 27 18,696 17,232 15,048 13,972
BERHES Contingency Fund 28 10,562 9,403 10,562 9,403
BRES Development Fund 29 1,000 954 — —
EmEE Total equity 30,258 27,589 25,610 23,375
o John C C Chan
R il 2 T Brian Stevenson
WX E Stewards
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

maMmEER
HRES BRES

R Contingency  Development F:C)
BEET in HK$ million Reserves Fund Fund Total
—OONnEFELHA—H#E Balance at 1 July 2009 17,232 9,403 954 27,589
REEE2ENEBLTE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,464 1,159 46 2,669
—O—OFAX~A=TH&& Balance at 30 June 2010 18,696 10,562 1,000 30,258
—OONEFE+LA—H#&& Balance at 1 July 2008 18,245 11,322 1,015 30,582
TEEZEEBESE Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,013) (1,919) (61) (2,993)
—OONFEAA=TH&R Balance at 30 June 2009 17,232 9,403 954 27,589




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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for the year ended 30 June

BEEAT in HK$ million Ff4 5 Note 2010 2009
e Operating activities
EETEMELENE SR Cash inflow generated from operations 31 2,325 692
2XHFE Interest paid (25) (32)
EX{EBREH Hong Kong profits tax paid (228) (233)
EETHWERESR Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,072 427
REEE Investing activities
BEYE RERSEMN Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,221) (929)
HEWE RERSEM Sale of property, plant and equipment 1 2
2 W ELF B Interest received 367 352
2 IR S Dividends received 490 212
HEE QAT REEE Capital injection to an associate — (30)
HHARZEFEEAETE Capital injection to a jointly controlled entity (61) =
BEAHHERBEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (21,455) (20,029)
HEAHBENKERE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets 20,144 19,310
BERAFLEEERERIERN Purchase of financial assets at fair value
BREE through profit or loss (90) (150)
HERAFEEEREBRYIERN Sale of financial assets at fair value
MHEE through profit or loss 210 306
HETE ST BT BOREERUE Net receipt for derivative financial instruments 355 19
REBEASWFERIE M Increase in deposits held in long-term
investment portfolios — (224)
REZBNFERER Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,260) (1,161)
Rl E R E Financing activities
(BEEE) BEFFRE (Repayment of)/proceeds from borrowings (17) 59
BETENFES R AA Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (17) 59
HERBESZEYFE M CH2L) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 795 (675)
FHORERESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year 4,854 5,618
Rz (EiE) Exchange gains/(losses) 21 (89)
FRESRRESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,670 4,854
HeRhRBESEEBYEFTIW Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
ySR-IRER Short-term deposits 3,631 3,755
RTEFR BHEREMTREES Bank balances, cash and other liquid funds 2,039 1,099
5,670 4,854
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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1. General information

The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong
and in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lottery. The
Club is incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee. The address of its
registered office is 1 Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong. Details of the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are mentioned on pages 169 to 170.

The last race meeting of the 2008/09 racing season was held on 1 July 2009 and the last
five race meetings of the 2009/10 racing season were held on 1 July 2010, 4 July 2010, 7
July 2010, 11 July 2010 and 14 July 2010 (“July 2010 race meetings”). Accordingly, the
financial results of 1 July 2009 have been included in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2010 and the financial results of July 2010 race meetings will be
shown in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2011. The
consolidated financial results of the 2008/09 and 2009/10 full racing seasons covering 78 and
83 race meetings respectively are shown on page 171.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars
(HK$ million).

The consolidated financial statements on pages 125 to 170 were approved by the
Stewards on 23 July 2010.

2. Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”), which include all applicable individual HKFRS,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"”) and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and derivative financial
instruments which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Cont.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont.)

(a) Revised standards and amendments that are relevant to the Group’s operations and
are effective for the current accounting period

HKAS 1 (Revised) ‘Presentation of financial statements’. The revised standard prohibits the
presentation of items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the
statement of changes in equity, requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity in a statement of comprehensive income. As a
result, the Group presents in the consolidated statement of changes in equity all owner
changes in equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equity are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Entities can choose whether to present
one performance statement (a statement of comprehensive income) or two statements (an
income statement and a statement of comprehensive income). The Group has elected to
present two statements, an income statement and a statement of comprehensive income.
Comparative information has been re-presented so that it is also in conformity with the
revised standard.

HKAS 27 (Revised) ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’. The revised standard
requires the effects of all transactions with minority interest to be recorded in equity if there
is no change in control and these transactions will no longer result in goodwill or gains and
losses. The standard also specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any remaining
interest in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated income statement.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) ‘Business combinations’. The revised standard continues to apply the
acquisition method to business combinations, with some significant changes. For example,
all payments to purchase a business are to be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date,
with contingent payments classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the
consolidated income statement. There is a choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to
measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets. All acquisition-related
costs should be expensed.

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) ‘Improving disclosures about financial instruments’. The
amendments require enhanced disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk
of financial instruments. In particular, the amendments require disclosure of fair value
measurement of financial instruments into a three-level hierarchy according to the extent to
which they are based on observable market data. In accordance with the transition
provisions, the comparative information for the newly required disclosures about the fair
value measurements has not been provided.

The Group has adopted the above revised standards and amendments but there is no
impact on the consolidated financial statements, apart from certain presentational changes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2. Principal accounting policies (Cont.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont.)

(b) New and revised standards, amendments and interpretation that are relevant to the
Group'’s operations but are not yet effective

The following new and revised standards, amendments and interpretation have been
published and are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010,
but have not been early adopted by the Group:

HKASs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs

HKAS 10 (Revised) Events after the Reporting Period

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 (Amendments) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement and

their Interaction

The adoption of the above new and revised standards, amendments and interpretation will
not have material financial impact to the Group other than the disclosure impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Reconciliation of the amounts wagered by customers to betting and lottery
revenue

The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all betting and lottery activities as
revenue, which is the amounts wagered net of betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes.
A reconciliation of the amounts wagered by customers to betting and lottery revenue is
shown below.

2010
BEAA=1THILEFEE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football #%5 pag:r:)
BEART in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
BEREEE Amounts wagered by customers 71,647 38,908 6,375 116,930
BEEE ENRESES Betting dividends, rebates and
lottery prizes (59,840) (32,494) (3,442) (95,776)
BEREZKRA Betting and lottery revenue 11,807 6,414 2,933 21,154
2009
BENA=THLEE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football B3 Fak:)
BEBART in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
EEREHALE Amounts wagered by customers 67,653 35,108 6,429 109,190
BEYL ENRESFES Betting dividends, rebates and
lottery prizes (56,266) (29,308) (3,472) (89,046)
BEREZFKA Betting and lottery revenue 11,387 5,800 2,957 20,144

FelaRBENETRIAR BREEREMR
Z2Z - REIREEEFAREZTBEERRESZRE
o B AT U E B FREE o

The consolidated income statement presents the amounts wagered by customers but this is
for information purposes only. Amounts wagered represent amounts received in respect of
bets placed by customers on betting and lottery activities during the year.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Cont.)

2.3 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, made up to 30 June
2010, of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. In the Club’s statement of financial
position, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Club on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

(b) Associate and jointly controlled entity
Associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

Jointly controlled entity is a joint venture whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic activity.

Investment in an associate/a jointly controlled entity is accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and is initially recognised at cost. The Group’s share of the associate/
jointly controlled entity’s post-acquisition results is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. In the consolidated
statement of financial position, the investment in an associate/a jointly controlled entity
comprises the Group’s share of net assets and its net advances made to the associate/jointly
controlled entity, plus goodwill identified on acquisition and net of accumulated impairment
losses, if any. When the Group’s share of losses in the associate/jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate/jointly controlled entity, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate/jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associate/jointly controlled
entity are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate/jointly controlled
entity. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactions provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Cont.)

2.4 Contingency Fund

The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income
from betting operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either
for the Club or for the Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the
Club’s substantial investment in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special
purposes as deemed appropriate by the Stewards. The Contingency Fund represents the
market value of the Contingency Fund investments and this is adjusted annually through
the receipt of investment income, realised surplus or deficit, revaluation of investments and,
when necessary, the transfer of additional funds.

The Contingency Fund investments are held for non-trading purpose and are stated at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The surplus derived from Contingency Fund
investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio. The
accounting policy for the financial assets of the Contingency Fund investments is stated in
note 2.8 below.

2.5 Development Fund

The Development Fund maintained under The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited,
is held to accumulate adequate funds to finance future membership facilities. The annual
transfer from the net surplus of the year is approved by the Stewards taking into
consideration the operating surplus, interest income earned by this Fund, and the amounts
of entrance and qualification fees of Full and Corporate Members, and Country Concession
Scheme joining fees received during the year. The financial assets of the Development Fund
are included in long-term investment portfolios.

2.6 Long-term investment portfolios

The primary purpose of the long-term investment portfolios is to invest surplus funds in
excess of normal operational requirements for capital appreciation over the medium to
long-term.

These portfolios are held for non-trading purpose and are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The surplus derived from these investments is reinvested and deficit
absorbed within these portfolios. The accounting policy for the financial assets of the long-
term investment portfolios is stated in note 2.8 below.

2.7 Debt securities portfolio

The primary purpose of debt securities is to invest surplus funds for cash management and
yield enhancement. They are held for non-trading purpose and are stated at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The accounting policy for the financial assets of debt securities
portfolio is stated in note 2.8 below.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: available-for-sale
financial assets, derivative financial instruments, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, and cash and cash equivalents. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of the financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date. The Contingency Fund investments, long-term investment portfolios,
and debt securities portfolio may contain these financial assets. Purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade day—the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Cont.)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont.)

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories. They comprise local and overseas
listed or unlisted equities, debt securities and/or alternative investments. The equities and
debt securities are initially measured at fair value plus direct and incremental transaction
costs and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and retained in the investment revaluation reserve until the
assets are sold. On the sale of these assets, the differences between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying value and the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from investment revaluation reserve to “Surplus/
deficit from securities investments and long-term investment portfolios” or “Surplus/deficit
from Contingency Fund investments” .

Alternative investments include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds and
private real estate funds. They follow the same accounting treatment as the equities and
debt securities. They do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair values
will be determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers
using valuation techniques.

(b) Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group uses derivatives such as interest rate swaps, equity options and foreign
exchange forward contracts to manage its financial risks and to facilitate the implementation
of its investment strategies. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
The Group has designated certain forward contracts as hedges of highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and
strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows
of hedged items.

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are
disclosed in note 30 under other current assets. Movements on the hedging reserve in
equity are included in exchange reserve and shown in note 27. The full fair value of a
hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining
maturity is more than 12 months, and as a current asset or liability when the remaining
maturity is less than 12 months.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives, that is designated and
qualified as cash flow hedge, is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement within “Surplus/(deficit) from securities investments and long-term investment
portfolios”.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category consists of notes with embedded derivatives and certain investments in
securities. The economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are not
closely linked to the underlying assets. The Group designates these assets at fair value at
inception. Changes in the fair value of these assets are included in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference
between the net sale proceeds or the net payment and the carrying value is included in the
consolidated income statement.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Cont.)
2.8 Financial assets (Cont.)
(d) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method and are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period where these are classified as
non-current assets.

The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “Loans and receivables” as shown in note
22, and “Short-term deposits” in the consolidated and Club’s statements of financial
position.

(e) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss—
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated income
statement—is reclassified from investment revaluation reserve to income. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income statement.

2.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. They are depreciated over the period of their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis at the following rates:

Buildings 25 years

Plant and equipment ranging from 10% to 33% per annum

Projects in progress no depreciation is provided on projects in progress since they
are not in use. On completion, the project costs are transferred
to the appropriate property, plant and equipment.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income statement during the year in which
they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Cont.)

2.10 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and
that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Investment properties are measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs, and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. They are depreciated over the period of their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis at the same rate as buildings.

2.11 Leasehold land prepayments

Upfront prepayments made for leasehold land are included in the consolidated and Club’s
statements of financial position as leasehold land prepayments and expensed in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average cost less provision for diminution in value. Spare parts are amortised
over a period of five years on a straight-line basis.

2.13 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s
subsidiaries, associate and jointly controlled entity operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from
depreciation on property, plant and equipment, investment properties, amortisation on
leasehold land prepayments, and employee retirement benefit cost. Taxation rates enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred
taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investment in an
associate and a jointly controlled entity, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Cont.)

2.14 Foreign currency translation

Iltems included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group'’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Club’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. The
differences arising from translation are recognised in the consolidated income statement
except for translation differences on non-monetary items of available-for-sale financial
assets, such as equities, which are included in the investment revaluation reserve.

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

— assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting

period;

— income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments are recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a foreign entity is partially disposed of or sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in the consolidated income statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.15 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.16 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the
leasing company are accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases are charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease periods.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Cont.)
2.17 Revenue recognition
Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and
rebates and is recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends
and is recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from lottery represents commission income and is recognised when the
relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised
when the event has been held.

Revenue from food and beverage sales, other member services and livery charges is
recognised when the relevant services have been rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest
method. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Royalty income is shown net of overseas withholding taxes and recognised on the
accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

2.18 Staff costs

(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon
retirement with reference to the final salaries of the employees.

The retirement benefit costs are assessed using the projected unit credit method and
the cost of providing pensions is charged to the consolidated income statement so as to
spread the cost over the service lives of employees in accordance with the advice of the
actuary who carries out a full valuation of the Scheme periodically. The pension obligation
is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows using market yields
of government securities which have terms of maturity approximating the terms of the
related liability. Actuarial gains and losses, to the extent that any cumulative unrecognised
actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten per cent of the greater of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of Scheme assets, are recognised over the average
remaining service lives of employees.

Past service costs, if any, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested.

Pension liabilities, if any, are included under other liabilities in the consolidated and
Club’s statements of financial position. They represent the net total of the Group and Club’s
pension obligations; plus any unrecognised actuarial gains (less any actuarial losses); minus
any unrecognised past service costs; and minus the fair value of Scheme assets. If the net
total determined is negative, then the resulting asset, which is included under other assets
in the consolidated and Club’s statements of financial position, is limited to the net total of
any cumulative unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs and the present value
of any future refunds from the Scheme or reductions in future contributions to the Scheme.

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme applicable to each year are
charged to the consolidated income statement for the year and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for the
contributions. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Cont.)

2.18 Staff costs (Cont.)

(c) Mandatory Provident Fund scheme

Employer’s contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF scheme”) are
charged to the consolidated income statement for the year.

(d) Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, bonuses, paid annual leave are recognised in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.

2.19 Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or
exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or
vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common control. Related parties
may be individuals or entities.

2.20 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested at
least annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise
significant judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including
making estimates and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are
impacted by judgements and uncertainties and for which different amounts may be
reported under a different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and
equipment on the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage
experience. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method at rates sufficient to
write off their cost or valuation over their estimated useful lives (note 2.9).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result
in a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs independent valuation professionals to conduct annual assessments of
the actuarial position of the Group’s retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s
obligation and expense for the defined benefit element of these plans is dependent on
certain assumptions and factors provided by the Club, which are disclosed in note 20.
Changes to the principal actuarial assumptions can affect the present value of plan
obligations and service costs in future periods.
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3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Cont.)

3.3 Income tax

Certain tax treatments adopted by the Group in past years are yet to be finalised with the
relevant tax authority. In assessing the Group’s income tax and deferred taxation in the
2010 consolidated financial statements, the Group recognises liabilities based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

3.4 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made.

3.5 Asset impairment

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment, particularly in
assessing whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2) the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows from the
asset using estimated cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine the
level, if any, of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could significantly affect the Group’s reported financial condition
and results of operations.

4. Betting and lottery revenue
The betting revenue of the Group comprises horse race betting, football betting and lottery.

% o

BEBT in HK$ million 2010 2009

EEEY Horse race betting 11,807 11,387

BB Football betting 6,414 5,800

4% 3% Lottery 2,933 2,957
21,154 20,144

5 #FIR{AL 5. Net margin and commission

MANREESBERERBERIAENEEEHE
MEE BN BEHRE @I EESEBRTH
SR

RAERERZRILEREZAENRS &
FEHRERSZEEHAAHFRIE -

Net margin represents the amounts wagered on horse race betting and football betting net
of the related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing jurisdiction
outside Hong Kong.

Commission represents the amounts wagered on lottery net of related prizes, duty and
payment to Lotteries Fund.

BEAT in HK$ million 2010 2009
BESERAR Horse race betting net margin 3,230 3,126
R IRIE AR Football betting net margin 3,207 2,900
REHe Lottery commission 383 386

6,820 6,412




142

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jo 75 e 2% P

6. Hfilr A

EEHMBBUAZZEAEASE EFE HE
BE RREEMERAREAESRMAREH K
%0

6. Other revenue

Other revenue of the Group principally comprises admission charges, livery charges, royalty
income, catering sales and charges for services provided to Members.

7. BERF 7. Operating costs
BHEBTT in HK$ million 2010 2009
B TR (FizE12) Staff costs (note 12) 2,812 2,600
BEERD Prize money 753 768
EthEEEHNES Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 126 118
2% B AN B = Auditor’s remuneration 3 3
EEME Stewards’ remuneration = =
W RERBMITE (FEE13) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 13) 873 763
THE L b FEAS FRIE 88 (M EE14) Amortisation for leasehold land prepayments (note 14) 16 16
REYEITE (Fiz£15) Depreciation of investment properties (note 15) 1 —
& ERE (FisE13) Asset impairment (note 13) 9 =
EEmAAR Cost of inventories sold 352 338
H i 8 & p A Other operating costs 1,366 1,487
6,311 6,093

8. EBHHRRRRMRRAGHRE (HR)

8. Surplus/(deficit) from securities investments and long-term investment

portfolios
BHEBT in HK$ million 2010 2009
HEAHBETBEENRS (FE) Surplus/(deficit) on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets:
—ERtA-—ARBNEEE( (BB, — realisation of amounts previously recognised in
EehE investment revaluation reserve at 1 July (24) 147
—REEREENEHE — amount arising in current year 91 (1,501)
67 (1,354)
FTIREREKE Dividend income from listed equities 56 90
FEEMRERE WS Dividend income from unlisted equities 353 —
FHEBEESFANE WS Interest income from listed debt securities 108 78
Ik EREBHHEEF B WS Interest income from unlisted debt securities 71 75
THE SR T ENFRE Net gains of derivative financial instruments 181 23
BRAFEEERERIENTBEEN Net gains/(losses) of financial assets at fair value
B (EE) through profit or loss 15 (51)
EEWE Management fees (13) (12)
838 (1,151)




9 MAESRENER (HR)

9. Surplus/(deficit) from Contingency Fund investments

BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009
HEAHHBENRKEEN (FR) B (Deficit)/surplus on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets:
—ERtA—BREIANKREEGEEEEZR — realisation of amounts previously recognised in
investment revaluation reserve at 1 July (630) (156)
—AREEFRELENEE — amount arising in current year 353 (1,220)
(277) (1,376)
EmRERE KR Dividend income from listed equities 81 122
T EKESFE R E Interest income from listed debt securities 107 64
Ik EmEKFSHF B Interest income from unlisted debt securities 58 32
FRA B W Interest income from deposits = 1
THESR I AN FRE Net gains of derivative financial instruments 136 19
EERE Management fees (25) (19)
80 (1,157)
10. B 10. Appropriation

BRTEEESELEFTES(FRERNR
EREENFRBSRBRECTES  HEES
ik

Appropriation to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust ( the “Trust”) represents

transfer of the Group’s net surplus to the Trust for its charitable purposes.

11. R\ 11. Taxation
BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009
BEBREH Hong Kong profits tax
— REARLIE — current tax 250 242
—BEFERE — adjustments in respect of prior years — 23
i 3E 75 78 (B =£ 26) Deferred taxation (note 26) 32 (24)
282 241

BB AR RIS AR T R BN R E 5
2+ ABBE(COONE A2+ AKE)BE
HE-

EEBRBA RS (RE) AL WEBRBIE
RREEEAIERB RN N AEENT ;

Hong Kong profits tax had been provided at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated

assessable profit for the year.

The taxation on the Group’s surplus/(deficit) before taxation differed from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009
BRE AR (EiE) Surplus/(deficit) before taxation 1,814 (676)
BBLZE165% (ZOONF : 16.5%) 5T & Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) 299 (111)
BEARB RN EZE Tax effect of non-taxable income (263) (42)
ENCIEE ook TR Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 369 500
RARSHERNB R E Tax effect of approved charitable donations (130) (82)
BIEFEFHE Adjustments in respect of prior years - (23)
Hih Others 7 (1)
FHIEBX H Taxation charge 282 241
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12. BEIR=E 12. Staff costs
BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009
FHeEREMREAR Salaries and other costs 2,600 2,508
BKERA—RERKE Pension costs — defined contribution plan 21 18
RIKERA—RERFIG 8 (FEE20) Pension costs — Scheme (note 20) 134 21
BE SR MPF contributions 57 53
2,812 2,600
13. X -RBERHBM 13. Property, plant and equipment
£ @ Group
EEITH
R B R B I#2E\H
g5 Plant and Projects in FEE L
BEET in HK$ million Buildings equipment progress Total
—OONEFELtA—HBEAE Cost at 1 July 2009 3,662 8,514 292 12,468
ju = Additions 38 850 293 1,181
LER Transfers 26 152 (178) —
BE Impairment — — (1) (1)
HERTH Disposals and write-offs — (225) — (225)
ZO—OFEXNA=tTHREAE Cost at 30 June 2010 3,726 9,291 406 13,423
—OONFEtE—HEBWERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2009 (2,339) (6,251) — (8,590)
REERWELH Depreciation charge for the year (128) (745) — (873)
REFZREBEZH Impairment charge for the year — (8) — (8)
S E R Disposals and write-offs — 224 — 224
ZO-—OFERA=t+HEBINERBE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2010 (2,467) (6,780) — (9,247)
ZO-—OFEXRA=ZTHREZEE Net book value at 30 June 2010 1,259 2,511 406 4,176
ZOONELtA—HBEAE Cost at 1 July 2008 3,583 7,927 133 11,643
BE Additions 83 635 252 970
R Transfers 6 87 (93) —
BRTREVE Transfer to investment properties (10) = = (10)
BERH Disposals and write-offs — (139) — (139)
E¥HIBER Currency translation differences — 4 — 4
ZOONREAB=1THREAKRE Cost at 30 June 2009 3,662 8,514 292 12,468
ZOONFtLtAR—HEBFERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2008 (2,221) (5,751) — (7,972)
REEREZH Depreciation charge for the year (126) (637) — (763)
ERTFREWHE Transfer to investment properties 8 — — 8
BERTH Disposals and write-offs — 137 — 137
ZOONEARB=THERBFERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2009 (2,339) (6,251) — (8,590)
ZOONREAB=THREZFEE Net book value at 30 June 2009 1,323 2,263 292 3,878




13. W% MR BM (E)

13. Property, plant and equipment (Cont.)

B2 Club
EEITH
BB R BB IREH
pig== Plant and Projects in FER:C)
BEAT in HK$ million Buildings equipment progress Total
—OONFELtA—BEAE Cost at 1 July 2009 3,186 7,378 224 10,788
BE Additions 38 751 162 951
3 Transfers 24 106 (130) —
BE Impairment — — (1) (1)
BERTHE Disposals and write-offs — (207) — (207)
ZO—OFEARNA=1THREAE Cost at 30 June 2010 3,248 8,028 255 11,5631
“OONEFELtA—HEBNERREE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2009 (2,015) (5,665) — (7,680)
REEREZH Depreciation charge for the year (110) (595) — (705)
REEREXZH Impairment charge for the year — (8) — (8)
BEREHE Disposals and write-offs — 206 - 206
ZO-OFERB=THEBFERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2010 (2,125) (6,062) — (8,187)
ZO—OFEA~RA=1THREFE Net book value at 30 June 2010 1,123 1,966 255 3,344
ZOONELtA—HBEAE Cost at 1 July 2008 3,133 6,977 91 10,201
gE Additions 58 472 189 719
3 Transfers 5 51 (56) -
ERTREWE Transfer to investment properties (10) = = (10)
HENEHE Disposals and write-offs — (122) — (122)
ZOONEARBE=THRAE Cost at 30 June 2009 3,186 7,378 224 10,788
—OONFEtLtA—HEZBWERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2008 (1,915) (5,280) — (7,195)
REEREXH Depreciation charge for the year (108) (505) — (613)
EHBRTREWE Transfer to investment properties 8 — — 8
FERTHE Disposals and write-offs — 120 — 120
“OONEARA=THEBHNERHE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2009 (2,015) (5,665) — (7,680)
ZOONEAB=1THEREEE Net book value at 30 June 2009 1,171 1,713 224 3,108
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14. HELTHRFFKRIEA

14. Leasehold land prepayments

&8 Group 5= Club
BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009 2010 2009
tA—BEA~NB=1tTHRAE Cost at 1 July and 30 June 1,561 1,561 1,541 1,541
+tA—HZRBE#H Accumulated amortisation at 1 July (959) (943) (959) (943)
REFBETH Amortisation charge for the year (16) (16) (16) (16)
ANA=THEE#E Accumulated amortisation at 30 June (975) (959) (975) (959)
ANAZ=ZTBEREFEE Net book value at 30 June 586 602 566 582
NA=+tHHEL HFENTERETEE The net book value at 30 June of
BETIEEENHEM leasehold land prepayments
located in Hong Kong
comprised the following:
AE+FAERBBELNNHEM Long-term leases exceeding
fifty years 195 223 195 223
TEU ERBRBENNEL Medium-term leases exceeding
ten years 379 362 359 342
TEUTHRYNEM Leases of below ten years 12 17 12 17
586 602 566 582
15. BEME 15. Investment properties
£ @ N 5= Group and Club
BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009
+ A —HEAE Cost at 1 July 27 17
EERETF Transfer from buildings - 10
ANA=ZTBEAE Cost at 30 June 27 27
tA—HZRERE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (22) (14)
REEFELH Depreciation charge for the year (1) —
EHREAETF Transfer from buildings - (8)
NA=ZTBEEHRE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (23) (22)
ANA=ZTHEREFEE Net book value at 30 June 4 5

RENMFER=ZO—-—OFAA=+tHR=0ON
FRAZTH 2FHBY SERNEXRMGE
MM EBTARARDIETENMGE - HEUX
REBTSNRITERRELEET - TEREY
FHUREB REMERMGEINLAFEESR
NEETHEERT(ZOOAF  ARELtTHE
BB -

The investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2009 by independent,
professionally qualified valuer “Jones Lang LaSalle Limited”. Valuations were based on
current prices in an active market. The investment properties are located in Hong Kong. The
fair value of the investment properties was HK$854 million (2009: HK$574 million) on the
date of valuation.



16. MELARKRE HERREH

16. Investments in, loans to and balances with subsidiaries

£ ® Group 5& Club
BEBT in HK$ million 2010 2009 2010 2009
MEARRE Investments in subsidiaries
—FETRM  BRAE — Unlisted shares, at cost — — 1,134 1,134
& it B A B FrER B =X Loans to subsidiaries - — 1,152 465
FEUR B [T B 2 Bl By FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries - — 113 149
e F B A B R FIE Amounts due to subsidiaries — — (3,094) (3,024)

@ Y B 2~ B P AE R B R30I R IR WA
B ARFHERKHEE EXNEEEE &
HAVEEHES-
FEWEME QB NRERDILEER S H
ANE  ARMEFHERBHEE - RN EIER
MENERHN TSR RFTE - WAREHZRE
BE FEREANREEERE A FEEMRS -
BNTHERARDNRELEER FEUE
BHTSAEAE  YAREHERKERZ -F
BEFANREEEREAFEEES -
FERTENBARIBENGETBRRE
—BXATRAEE-BLtEH-

The loans to subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
The carrying amounts of the loans approximated their fair values.

The majority of the amounts due from subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. The remaining balance was unsecured, interest bearing
at prevailing market rate and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts approximated
their fair values.

Amounts due to subsidiaries were unsecured, interest bearing at prevailing market rate
and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts approximated their fair values.

The principal subsidiaries of the Club are shown on pages 169 to 170 of the consolidated
financial statements.
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17. BEAFKREREIRIE 17. Investment in and amount due from an associate

£ @ Group £ Club
BEBT in HK$ million 2010 2009 2010 2009
tA—H At 1 July 7 — - —
mEE A REAER Capital injection to an associate — 30 — =
FriGEs 18 Share of loss (8) (23) - =
B HIRER Currency translation difference 1 = - —
~NB=+H At 30 June — 7 — —
EWRBHE QTR KIE Amount due from an associate 11 = = —
GE N TFHROT Details of the associate are as follows:
EREFMAINEMERERAR : EERAREHERAE EelESEAENERES

Incorporated in Taiwan,
limited by registered capital:

FEXK

Principal activities

Authorised and
paid up capital

Effective percentage
held by the Club indirectly

BEXNERGERADF
Taiwan Sport Lottery Corporation

BREHENABEAA=ZTHILENEERRE Mk
HNPBERBENT :

operates sport lottery in Taiwan

HMEwHRET
NT$500,000,000

24.5%

A summary of financial information of the associate based on its management accounts as
of 30 June is as follows:

£ & Group F& Club

BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009 2010 2009
£BER £BESF BEREs BEelEE
Bok Bk Bt Bt
Group's Group's Club’s Club’s
effective effective effective effective
interest interest interest interest
100% 24.5% 100%  24.5% — — — —
EE Assets 131 — 179 43 - — — —
=K Liabilities (297) = (148) (36) - - = =
= Equity (166) — 31 7 — — — —
2= Income 138 6 101 25 - — — —
] Expenses (305) (12) (224) (55) - - — —

BRI BEE Loss after

taxation (198) (8) (93) (23) — — = =

SEEBRENRASENESTESREMRRR

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the associate.



18. XFAEHRERE

18. Investment in a jointly controlled entity

£ @ Group E= Club
BEAT in HK$ million 2010 2010
+tA—H At 1 July - -
MiAREHEREAER Capital injection to a jointly controlled entity 61 =
Frit &8 Share of loss (25) —
~B=1+H At 30 June 36 —
HEZEHIEEFHBOT ¢ Details of the jointly controlled entity are as follows:
EREARLMBEIZME LD
HMERERAF : EeRERENEREDL

Incorporated in The People’s Republic of
China, limited by registered capital

FEXK

Principal activities

EERAREHEBRA
Authorised and paid up capital

Effective percentage held by
the Club indirectly

TR BREEEFEMERAT
China Sports Lottery HKJC
Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd

RESEQARHSE URSEARDSGRAEAL
RAEREEERMAERA KK EHINEL T
mHE Bt EENESI AR EHER AR
RELARZFHNEEEESA=ZTHLENER
IRERAENMBEERFENT

RESMBR - HMEIR ARBARTER 90%
I & 5 7 AR 7S RMB60,000,000

provision of computer technology,
technical training and business
information consultancy

Under the joint venture agreement, none of the joint venture partners has unilateral control
over the economic activities of China Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd and
hence, the Group's interests are accounted for as a jointly controlled entity.

A summary of financial information of the jointly controlled entity based on its
management accounts as of 30 June is as follows:

£ E Group 58 Club

BEET in HK$ million 2010 2010
SEEEN BEEEN
ERESL ERBESL
Group's Club’s
effective effective
interest interest
100% 90% — —
FEREEE Non-current assets 35 31 - =
MENE E Current assets 11 10 - —
mEAE Current liabilities (5) (5) - —
s Equity 41 36 - —
Y &= Income = = = =
3] Expenses 38 34 - -
FRBiZE B Loss after taxation 28 25 = =

SEEAREFNEERANERLESREMAR
REE-

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entity.
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19. RERBEHS 19. Long-term investment portfolios
£ & Group £ Club
BEAT in HK$ million 2010 2009 2010 2009
AHHENEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
S Equities
ERBLD Listed in Hong Kong 742 739 742 739
EEMEH Listed overseas 2,515 2,295 2,515 2,295
FLEH Unlisted 51 74 51 74
3,308 3,108 3,308 3,108
BRHEF Debt securities
EEMEH Listed overseas 2,902 2,333 1,993 1,503
JFEEH Unlisted 1,233 788 1,233 788
4,135 3,121 3,226 2,291
SHEERE Alternative investments
JFEEH Unlisted 2,387 2,538 2,011 2,208
9,830 8,767 8,545 7,607
$TE <R T A (FfEE30) Derivative financial instruments
(note 30) 93 38 93 38
HIFRENES Funds awaiting investment 314 368 314 368
TR Deposits 624 624 — —
10,861 9,797 8,952 8,013

EERSEMENERESREFRNNEFIHE
BAR R ABIRZH-ER=ZHNAKR(Z
OONERRABEDIZHNHE=N\RIEEET) - £H
RESMENEBRSREFRNREEER  HA
NFEEMEE MEMEFIHRUD B S ELF
EAF(ZOONFRRBEFRAF)

The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 3.27%
and 3.86% for the Group and Club respectively (2009: 4.38% and 4.50% respectively). The
carrying amounts of the debt securities and deposits approximated their fair values and
their weighted average maturities were 7 years and 9 years for the Group and Club

respectively (2009: 7 years and 9 years respectively).

£ @ Group 5 & Club
2010 2009 2010 2009
EHEBEASUTIERITE ! Long-term investment portfolios
are denominated in the
following currencies:

=20 USsD 55% 64% 52% 61%
BT HKD 23% 10% 24% 10%
& EUR 11% 15% 12% 17%
A JPY 4% 6% 4% 6%
T GBP 2% — 2% —
BT AUD - 1% — 1%
Hih & Other currencies 5% 4% 6% 5%
100% 100% 100% 100%




20. Hfti=E

20. Other assets

£E K 52 Group and Club

BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009
HMEEREEMERARACEIANEBRE Other assets represented pension assets of the Group's
BAGHERMNEEENT : Scheme recognised in the statement of financial
position which were determined as follows:
ANNENEEE Present value of obligations 3,046 3,047
STEEENATEER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,500) (2,317)
B8 Deficit 546 730
AERNBEEE Unrecognised actuarial losses 833 1,060
BEMRRERFAINERSFEE Net pension assets in the statement of financial position (287) (330)
REBANTENEEHRNOT : Reconciliation of the present value of the defined
benefit obligations was as follows:
tB—H At 1 July 3,047 2,863
MNERES ®REMWE TR KA Current service cost net of employee contributions 144 142
SB=959 Interest cost 77 96
EREZANEFNE Actual benefits paid (210) (130)
ANBANENRBE (Bt B Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation (13) 75
EREEHN Actual employee contributions 1 1
ANA=ZTHEAMHNENESRE Present value of obligation at 30 June 3,046 3,047
FRFAEEELAFEEELBNOT : The movement in the fair value of Scheme assets of
the year was as follows:
tHB—H At 1 July 2,317 3,011
st EIEERNFESTE R Expected return on Scheme assets 179 217
BERE(EE) Actuarial gains/(losses) 121 (782)
& E MK Employer contributions 92 —
EEMK Employee contributions 1 1
EXANERNE Benefits paid (210) (130)
AA=THWFEEEQAFEE Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,500 2,317
£ [ Group
BEEAT in HK$ million 2010 2009
ERHERPECERORENT : The amounts recognised in the income statement
were as follows:
5 B R 75 A AN Current service cost 144 142
F B B A< Interest cost 77 96
s EIE E R FEE E 3R Expected return on Scheme assets (179) (217)
ERANBEFESR Net actuarial losses recognised 92 —
sFTAB IR AMARE (FizE12) Total included in staff costs (note 12) 134 21
ERANTEEEERERRARBHKE =B (= The actual return on Scheme assets recognised was a gain of HK$300 million (2009: loss of

OONF  BRABATHEEEET) °

HK$565 million).
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20. Hth&&E (&)

BEET

20. Other assets (Cont.)

£E K 52 Group and Club
in HK$ million 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

REBANFENWRE

Present value of defined

benefit obligations 3,046 3,047 2,863 2,422 2,326
STEEENAFERA Fair value of Scheme assets (2,500) (2,317) (3,011) (3,353) (2,734)
Eia (B Deficit/(surplus) 546 730 (148) (931) (408)
TEEENER (KR BE Experience (gains)/losses on

Scheme liabilities (111) 5 99 (15) 78
EEENER (KE) BE Experience (gains)/losses on

Scheme assets (121) 782 363 (497) (211)

SER=O——FENAHAKLBEANBAT
BT

BEET

The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$90 million for the year 2011.

£E K 52 Group and Club
in HK$ million 2010 2009

SrEEERRE:

RE
&%
RekHA

Scheme assets were comprised as

follows :

Equities 1,704 68% 1,743 75%
Bonds 796 32% 614 27%
Cash and others - - (40) (2%)

2,500 100% 2,317 100%

AN ERRERRS FRRBEIZ-H
“(ZOOhE Ao Z-HAR) FEEEN
B EHREREIZ2LHA(COONF BOZ
N MARRFEARBNEFLERBBES 21 (=
OONEF AHZM) -

SAEEEMNETE®R MERTREBET
FHEENATEREE - RERBESHNETE
B RRERMFH@BFER -

The principal actuarial assumptions used were: discount rate 2.20% (2009: 2.65%), expected
rate of return on Scheme assets 7.50% (2009: 8.00%) and expected rate of future salary
increases 4.00% (2009: 4.00%).

The expected return on Scheme assets was determined by considering the expected
returns available on the assets under the current investment policy. Expected returns on
equities and bonds reflected long-term average rates of return.



21. BEHESES

21. Debt securities portfolio

£ @ & 52 Group and Club

BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009

AHHENEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BEES Debt Securities

w8 Em Listed overseas 446 412

F¥LEH Unlisted 749 869

1,195 1,281

RAFEEEBERIENTBEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 206 311

1,401 1,592

EERSEMENEBESNMETIERA
REBASTZ—HAEN(ZOONF  BOZ=&
) KERFEFFENEEESHIREER &
HAFPEEMAE MENEFGHRIBME (=
OONE MF) EHBHUBTRETIFTE -

22. RftikERE

The debt securities carried a weighted average effective interest rate of 1.59% for the Group
and Club (2009: 2.50%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their fair
values and their weighted average maturities were 2 years for the Group and Club (2009: 2
years). The debt securities were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD"”) or United States
Dollar (“USD").

22. Other current assets

£ @ Group 5 Club

BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009 2010 2009

FE Inventories 83 89 45 55

EXRRERTE Loans and receivables 228 268 210 212

FE {78 Prepayments 321 282 128 121
TE£ R T A (FizE30) Derivative financial instruments

(note 30) 7 — 7 -

639 639 390 388

23. HHER
SEREENEHERNMETHERIE 5
AMEBEIZZEHANAR—(ZOONELR AR
AZEZNLREEHMN) SERSENEHER
WIEEEEE BEAFEEAE MEAMETLY
HEREMIBABATEERET=B(Z0O0ORES
AB=+=BR+~0) BHRERUBTHRET
HE o

23. Short-term deposits

The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 0.99% and 1.00%
for the Group and Club respectively (2009: 0.47% and 0.40% respectively). The carrying
amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted average
maturities were 67 days and 73 days for the Group and Club respectively (2009: 23 days and
16 days respectively). The short-term deposits were denominated in HKD or USD.

24. HHER 24. Short-term loans

£ @ Group E& Club
BBEBT in HK$ million 2010 2009 2010 2009
KA ER Unsecured loans 466 483 = =

LHEHETREENR  AHIR-—MEA  F7
EREIZOBNAS(ZOONFRBEIZEE
NARERHE-—D) EXRNREEEEEQAFEERE
HE BERUARBHIE -

The above were short-term revolving bank loans with maturities of less than one month
and interest rate was 4.86% per annum (2009: between 4.86% and 6.12% per annum). The
carrying amounts of the loans approximated their fair values. The loans were denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”).
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25. EREHRREARKE

25. Creditors and receipts in advance

£ ® Group F& Club
BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009 2010 2009
B Z MR Trade payables 2,907 2,488 1,729 1,546
H A FE S BR X % FE 5T R 1B Other payables and accruals 931 701 637 567
3,838 3,189 2,366 2,113

26. RERESE (AR)
FRAERAMBERRRANEERBEEE (&

26. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the statement of financial

B)BEERESEHERMOT : position, and the movements during the year were as follows :
£ & Group B = Club
ETE B8 ETE B8
kREE  RIREF kREE  RIREF
Accelerated  Employee Accelerated Employee
depreciation  retirement Hity # %5 depreciation retirement Hiy PR
BEET in HK$ million allowances benefit cost Others Total allowances benefitcost Others Total
—OO0OhELtHA—H At 1 July 2009 (21) — b (16) (22) — — (22)
CN=DVEPN € F (Charged)/credited
to income
statement (39) — 7 (32) (37) — 1 (36)
—O—O%~B=t1H At 30 June 2010 (60) - 12 (48) (59) - 1 (58)
—OONFELtHA—H At 1 July 2008 6 (47) 1 (40) 3 (47) (2) (46)
(8) AW R (Charged)/credited
to income
statement (27) 47 4 24 (25) 47 2 24
—OONR&EARA=TH At 30 June 2009 (21) = 5 (16) (22) = = (22)




27. fEf@

27. Reserves

£ @ Group E&Club
RE&E RE
BEhEE BHERE
ZEHEE  Investment [ER{FHE 2%  Investment
Accumulated  revaluation Exchange #%  Accumulated revaluation FLE
BEBT in HK$ million reserve reserve reserve Total reserve reserve Total
—OONhEtA—H At 1 July 2009 17,836 (631) 27 17,232 14,626 (654) 13,972
FAREEER Retained surplus
for the year 1,452 — — 1,452 1,139 — 1,139
EWMERER Currency translation
differences — — 21 21 — — —
AHHENKEENEMGER Deficit on revaluation
of available-for-sale
financial assets — (33) — (33) — (87) (87)
AHHENKEELERNEERER Realised losses on
EH BB ARGR R disposal of
available-for-sale
financial assets
reclassified to
income statement — 24 — 24 — 24 24
= (9) = (9) = (63) (63)
—O—O&X~A=1H At 30 June 2010 19,288 (640) 48 18,696 15,765 (717) 15,048
—OONEtA—H At 1 July 2008 17,596 620 29 18,245 14,536 620 15,156
FRREBRER Retained surplus
for the year 240 — - 240 90 - 90
B HIBER Currency translation
differences - - (2) (2) - - -
AHHENKEENEMER Deficit on revaluation
of available-for-sale
financial assets — (1,104) —  (1,104) — (1,127) (1,127)
AHHENBEELERNEZRKE Realised gains on
= kb N E T disposal of
available-for-sale
financial assets
reclassified to
income statement - (147) = (147) — (147) (147)
- (1,251) —  (1,251) - (1,274) (1,274)
—OOhEARAB=+H At 30 June 2009 17,836 (631) 27 17,232 14,626 (654) 13,972
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28. fRAER 28. Contingency Fund
£ E K £ 2 Group and Club
RESMHREE
Investment
HEe 4 revaluation FEkC
BEAT in HK$ million Fund balance reserve Total
—OOhEtLtHBE—H At 1 July 2009 10,511 (1,108) 9,403
EREWER Transfer from income statement 80 — 80
AHHENKEENEGH AL Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets — 449 449
HEENKEEHLERNESEEE Realised losses on disposal of
B ERANER available-for-sale financial assets
reclassified to income statement — 630 630
— 1,079 1,079
—O—O%X~A=1+H At 30 June 2010 10,591 (29) 10,562
—OONEtLHE—H At 1 July 2008 11,668 (346) 11,322
ER e REE Transfer from income statement (1,157) — (1,157)
AHHENKEENERER Deficit on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - (918) (918)
AHHENBEEHERNE BRER Realised losses on disposal of
B ERANER available-for-sale financial assets
reclassified to income statement — 156 156
— (762) (762)
ZOOhEARA=TH At 30 June 2009 10,511 (1,108) 9,403




28. fRRES® (&)

28. Contingency Fund (Cont.)

ERESRENRRK: Represented by Contingency Fund investments:
£ E K 52 Group and Club
BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009
HHERBEE Available-for-sale financial assets
ES Equities
ERBLED Listed in Hong Kong 2,337 2,384
w8 Em Listed overseas 3,116 3,961
5,453 6,345
BEES Debt securities
et m Listed overseas 2,057 1,698
FEmHm Unlisted 1,377 901
3,434 2,599
TE£ R T A (FisE30) Derivative financial instruments (note 30) (41) 34
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 1,716 425
10,562 9,403

SEREEHMENERE SR INEF D ERF=
RAPZZHNE(ZOONF Ao 2MEM
me-£ERSEMENEBESHNIRAEER &
HAVPEEMRAE MENEFGHRIBAE (=
OONE : he) -

The debt securities carried a weighted average effective interest rate of 3.97% for the Group
and Club (2009: 4.44%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their fair
values and their weighted average maturities were 9 years for the Group and Club (2009: 9
years).

£ E K 52 Group and Club

2010 2009
ERESREUTIERITE : Contingency Fund investments are denominated in
the following currencies:

EH USD 52% 44%
BT HKD 20% 25%
7 EUR 13% 15%

H JPY 4% 5%
HEEE GBP 3% 3%
Hih & Other currencies 8% 8%
100% 100%
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29. REER® 29. Development Fund
££ @ Group E=Club
REEM RESM
#E HE
HE#  Investment HE&#  Investment
Fund revaluation Fak:cl Fund revaluation FEk
BEAT in HK$ million balance reserve Total balance reserve Total
Z—OONhEtLA—H At 1 July 2009 1,015 (61) 954 — — —
AHEENKEENE LR Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial
assets — 46 46 — — —
—O—OF~A=1H At 30 June 2010 1,015 (15) 1,000 - — -
—OONELHA—H At 1 July 2008 1,015 — 1,015 — — —
AHEENBEENEMEE Deficit on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial
assets — (61) (61) _ _ _
ZOONERA=1+H At 30 June 2009 1,015 (61) 954 — — —

30. fTERMTA

30. Derivative financial instruments

£ E K £ 2 Group and Club

REREASE ERESRE

(BtEE19) HEtREEE (Kzx28)

Long-term (Fft5E22) Contingency

investment Other current Fund

portfolios assets investments

BEBTT in HK$ million (note 19) (note 22) (note 28)
REESFEN Forward contracts on bonds 12 — 14
RHNEESHN Foreign exchange forward contracts 6 6 4
HE Futures 2 = (65)
HARE Options 69 — (1)
= 8 Swaps 4 1 7
—O—O0OFx~A=1H At 30 June 2010 93 7 (41)
=HESFEN Forward contracts on bonds 41 — 36
EHNIEESN Foreign exchange forward contracts (1) — 3
HE Futures (2) = (5)
—OONnEARB=1+H At 30 June 2009 38 = 34
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31. BRRMER (BRI EEXTDMEEN

31. Reconciliation of surplus/(deficit) before taxation to net cash inflow

BHERAHE generated from operations
£ M@ Group

BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009
BRE AT RER(EiE) Surplus/(deficit) before taxation 1,814 (676)
FrihBtE Na R HAEEFEEEE Share of loss of an associate and a jointly controlled entity 33 23
HEHBEEMKEENEE Deficit on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 248 2,761
B B W = Dividend income (490) (212)
B U 2 Interest income (367) (325)
MEXZH Interest expenses 61 28
FTHESR T BN E RS Net gains of derivative financial instruments (317) (42)
BAFEEEBERIRNTEEEN Net (gains)/losses of financial assets at fair value through

F (W 3R),EE profit or loss (15) 51
ME -RERBMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 873 763
FHE £ T8 FRIE i 8 Amortisation for leasehold land prepayments 16 16
REMENE Depreciation of investment properties 1 —
EEME Asset impairment 9 -
EEESEF Movement in working capital

FERD Decrease in inventories 6 12

BHREWSIERD(Em) Decrease/(increase) in loans and receivables 46 (73)

FEATFRIEIE AN Increase in prepayments (39) (98)

FEATBRFRIE AN CRi 2>) Increase/(decrease) in creditors 632 (1,350)
R BATE {4 B £ A Increase in long-term prepayments (229) (207)
Hth & E R Decrease in other assets 43 21
EETHFEENRESRA Cash inflow generated from operations 2,325 692
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32. #&iE 32. Commitments
321 EAREIE 32.1 Capital commitments
REBRBREREENERZHOT : Capital expenditures not yet incurred at the end of the reporting period were as follows:
£ & Group

BEBT in HK$ million 2010 2009
BRI LAHNBERELEE Contracted but not provided for 1,484 857
EHLEBRFTIZEN Authorised but not contracted for 1,393 1,063

2,877 1,920
322 HEAIE 32.2 Leasecommitments

RAB=1tH REATEHENEXENORE
AAAXNNREESEE|NT

As at 30 June, the total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases were as follows:

£ @ Group
BEET in HK$ million 2010 2009
BT Buildings
R—FR Within one year 134 68
REZZFRFA In the second to fifth year inclusive 106 162
RERER After the fifth year 42 44
282 274

33. E#EtE

EEAEREESRLT —BAEREANFER—E
SE KT8 o MR E 8119 4R 5 (B SR IR AT B 1R
PFEM  AHRBYETAETE I KETE
SE-BERGERFMEAESETE - HLIE S
RECEHEDES RPN EM AHMKRE
SR RIS R A

33. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members
of both schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered under
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent
trustees. The Group also participates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two
independent service providers.



34. HEREALTZES
HREEEERRETAREEERESFERA
FESEEANARSHARSERIANESR
BRE ALSEHGEESRESSEEAMNLR
EBRAREERQIAGEFE -
SEHERENT HEAZHBEERAEMEER
BEATEBETHRZNOT

341 EEEH

FR EEBRERTEREXERYE BETES
WHEBEEANTESBT(COOAE : =FtH
BET) o

342 BERTREE N KRS
SEEFERARECHERAERARESESE
ERHARTEAENERA-—TAESEE T (=
OONE  —THEHEBT) °

343 HEEFIEBAEEN RS
SEEFABLRTEREEERMERQAR
BAARBUENBAEBT(ZOONEF [ ) -

344 HAR®
EEEBTRNAR  KLE-"BIBXH%K BE
BY EEHREY URAARES FLERKH
AESRENIERE AAEERE E#R
M URRAZERHIE UESEBMNELEN
RERANE  EERANBE SEEERE
BB HBIRBEAEREHNEE-
BEEBNRS BEEEBURBEXE 19
PRTHRABYIRBERN - XN ERS  9E
ETABBERNEEC RN EEELARER
ENXH BERRAANESERASE 2R AE
EEY EREY URANAVYBS-"EIE¥
B2R e

345 TEEEEFHM
ERESEHESREE YHEEZESSHY
EE -EERAEATEENERERRSHES
HESHER TERETEESEER - B2
ZESEEEREENEF USEEREE -
ARTEEBHMUAKRBNRELENEE 58
NEEEERNEESRURBITRARN L
(ZOONEF : NMU) HITREARNEEERE
g HABRAFEETAETLE-

34. Related party transactions
The Club is related to the Trust and The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course
Limited (“KSCGC") as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees of the Trust and the
Directors of KSCGC.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with the associate, the jointly
controlled entity and other related parties:

34.1 Management expenses
During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$40 million (2009:
HK$37 million) to the Trust for provision of administrative and support services.

34.2 Income from an associate
During the year, the Group received royalty income of HK$19 million (2009: HK$15 million)
from the Taiwan Sport Lottery Corporation for the use of the licensed sport lottery software.

34.3 Income from a jointly controlled entity
During the year, the Group received consultancy service income of HK$9 million (2009: nil)
from China Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

34.4 Shared services

The Group operates three primary businesses—horse race betting, football betting and
Mark Six lottery through separate legal entities. In order to maximise the Group’s
operational efficiencies and cost economies, these businesses share the use of the Club’s
established common selling and distribution channels, corporate management services,
and infrastructure facilities, as well as back office support. The Group adopts a policy to
fulfill its objectives of financial independence with no cross-subsidy amongst its different
businesses.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and overall financial results are maintained in
the separate books of accounts of each business. Business specific revenue and expenses
are directly accounted for in those business results. The Group’s expenses on the shared
services are charged to each main line of business of horse race betting, football betting
and Mark Six lottery at cost plus an appropriate mark-up.

34.5 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a
Board of Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of
the Group and its funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects
of the Group. The Board of Management is responsible for the operational management of
the Group and is overseen by the Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other
major institutions in Hong Kong, key management consists of the Board of Stewards and
the Board of Management which comprises the Chief Executive Officer and seven (2009:
eight) Executive Directors, as detailed on pages 16 to 17 of the Annual Report.
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34. BFABALTZE S (A
345 TEETEEFHM (@)
BESURBER  EFALEFNMNE -

EEZESXREFANFH IR =EARS

(a) BEXH %
EXMcOREELFES FEREMEHENEY
Raf o

(b) 522 53 # 24 49 B &
EEMERBEAARBIEERENBER -

(c) 2B 1kiEF
BRABANESEENERAESHRIKERAKT S
HRWORHE - RTHFELREERE  &F
AEEHERRARBE  EXHARERERIAK
sHEIERB QRN & BERIR BT HIEE

EEZESRREFANHFMOT

34. Related party transactions (Cont.)

34.5 Key management compensation (Cont.)

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the
years under review.

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation
Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in
kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation
This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the
performance of the Group.

(c) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in
lieu of retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities
in lieu of retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis,
notwithstanding the contractual entitlement and date of payment.

The remuneration for the Board of Management during the years were as follows:

BHEBT in HK$ million 2010 2009
EAEE Basic compensation 42 44
EER I AN 2 Performance-related compensation 16 12
ERER Retirement benefits 13 11
71 67
I ARBIMT The remuneration fell in the following bands:
A Number of individuals 2010 2009
e | Remuneration bands
1,000,001 7& Jt £ 2,000,000 JT HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 —
3,000,001 78 T £ 4,000,000 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 1 —
4,000,001 T £ 5,000,000 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 1
5,000,001 & 7T £ 6,000,000 7T HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 1 2
6,000,001 78 Jt £ 7,000,000 78 7T HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 1 2
7,000,001 & JT £ 8,000,000 7& JT HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 2 1
8,000,001 7& 7t £ 9,000,000 78 J© HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 1 1
9,000,001 78 T & 10,000,000 & J© HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 — 1
10,000,001 7& 7t & 11,000,000 JT HK$10,000,001 to HK$11,000,000 1 —
14,000,001 & T Z 15,000,000 % JT HK$14,000,001 to HK$15,000,000 — 1
15,000,001 7& 7t £ 16,000,000 & JT HK$15,000,001 to HK$16,000,000 1 —
10 9
REEKRNEEEENTIEETEEAE Key management left the Club before end of year 2 —
8 9




35. MBAEER

35.1 BAISmE R E &
SENEBAZSESZHTENTBRAR : 75RR
(BEE¥AR REEREBRAEER) &
BEcRBRREERE SENEREARERE
B EhHHSHHEIAREUNELE BHR
EEREHEEMBERENEEAFLE - &H
EATESHIE UEERARARZIHNE T
[E Bz o

SENZENBEE  BEEX -5 KRR
RAMEZERE HEEERIRBUIEXES
HEETERE -

EEEXHNRESSUBER -—REKEZES
HENREREREABRERES ETRBE
B REMBIRIES - B K EREE T A it
- SEERESEESNREER  HE
BESITERFIRIES WETRERRERE -

(a) 45 /EE
(i) & mEE
EMEBEERUIIEHENRERR SR
REXZHBFFEE Mol BEENER -
EENEEREBEFTEUXR TRB T
HoBrHEETEN  FAUIERRATRAE
BEM -EENENER TERSARE
FEREZENREMES
TREMNEBHR  EBTLEEER
MEZRTIELLWIEEES E5  £H
AR EZREZHERITIENERLT  &H

35. Financial risk management

35.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other
alternative investments, which are managed by the Treasury Department of the Club and
external professional fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Department of the Club under
investment policies and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Finance and
General Purposes Committee. Investment constraints and guidelines form an integral part
of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions and guidelines are set according to the investment
objectives of each fund to control risks of the investments.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates
relating to investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in USD or HKD. HKD is
pegged to USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The
Group’s currency exposure arises mainly from investments held in Euro (“EUR"),
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and Sterling Pound (“GBP”).

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if HKD had
strengthened/weakened against the currencies by the stated percentages, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have decreased/increased

WBRHERGERD AEmmT : as follows:
£ B Group
2010 2009
HE R HE R
EEWIETS BRBiE HEERTI MRBi %
BoLENEE ZBHNFE BI2LNEE BENEE
Wik, EEH Effect on Wim, EE Effect on
If currency post-tax If currency post-tax
strengthened/ surplus for strengthened/ deficit for
BEBT in HK$ million weakened by the year weakened by the year
Bz EUR 5% 27 5% 59
H JPY 5% 24 5% 26
HEE GBP 5% 6 5% 9
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35. Financial risk management (Cont.)

35.1 Financial risk factors (Cont.)

(a) Market risk (Cont.)
(ii) Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in equity prices. The Group is
exposed to equity price risk as the value of its equity investments will decline if equity
prices fall. These investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the
consolidated and Club’s statements of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group'’s
investment revaluation deficit included within total equity would have decreased/
increased by HK$583 million (2009: HK$569 million decreased/increased on investment
revaluation deficit) as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates.
This can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate
risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
future cash flows of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the
Group has significant investments that are interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, if there had been a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
post-tax surplus for the year would have been HK$63 million higher/lower (2009: HK$70
million lower/higher on post-tax deficit). The investment revaluation deficit included
within total equity would have been approximately HK$337 million higher/lower (2009:
HK$224 million higher/lower on investment revaluation deficit) in response to the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the
investment benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by asset allocation
which overweighs HKD and USD denominated assets. Currency exposure arising from the
net assets of the Group’s China operations is managed primarily through forward contract
and borrowings denominated in RMB. Equity price risk is mitigated by adopting
benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by securities. Interest rate risk is
controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing across a spectrum of
fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations
as they fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a
price close to fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet
exceptional needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and
invests primarily in liquid financial markets and instruments.
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35. Financial risk management (Cont.)
35.1 Financial risk factors (Cont.)

(b) Liquidity risk (Cont.)

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting
the amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that
all liabilities due and known funding requirements can be met.

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the
Group and Club as at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows:

£ @ Group
2010 2009
=@EA= =@A =@ A =@ A
P9 2—F T E—F
Upto3 >3 months azg Upto >3 months wzm
BEAT in HK$ million months to 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year Total
FITEHMBEAE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
HEEX Short-term loans 466 - 466 483 - 483
FEABR X Creditors 3,437 210 3,647 2,682 323 3,005
FTETRENEHEELEH) Derivatives (net-settled) (74) (2) (76) (11) — (11)
3,829 208 4,037 3,154 323 3,477
H&Club
2010 2009
=@A= =@A =@A =@A
P9 2—F HUT 2—F
Upto3 >3 months zg Upto >3 months Hwam
BEAT in HK$ million months to 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year Total
FITEHMKEAE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
FEABR X Creditors 2,057 181 2,238 1,702 283 1,985
EAFHB AT EHE Amounts due to subsidiaries 3,094 = 3,094 3,024 — 3,024
TTETECLFREEELEH) Derivatives (net-settled) (74) (2) (76) (11) — (11)
5,077 179 5,256 4,715 283 4,998
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35. Financial risk management (Cont.)

35.1 Financial risk factors (Cont.)

(b) Liquidity risk (Cont.)

As at 30 June 2010, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts held by the Group and Club were HK$6,553 million (2009: HK$5,228
million). The table below analyses the Group and Club’s outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts as at 30 June 2010 and 2009 that would be settled on a gross basis into
relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining contractual maturity dates. The amounts
disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows, which are different from the
carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the consolidated and Club’s statements of financial
position.

£ E K 52 Group and Club
2010 2009
=@A= =188 =& A =& A
Py 2—F WET 2—F
Upto3 >3 months azg Upto >3 months FEE L
BEAT in HK$ million months to 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year Total
EHIMESHN Foreign exchange forward
contracts
piines] Outflows (6,523) (30) (6,553) (5,186) (42) (5,228)
A Inflows 6,535 30 6,565 5,191 39 5,230
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(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or
willing to perform its contractual obligations in full when due. It arises mainly from the
Group's deposit placements, debt securities and derivative transactions.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties
and by diversification and deposits are only placed with reputable banks. Credit limits are
established to control the overall exposure to each authorised counterparty based on its
credit ratings and financial strength. Counterparty credit exposures are measured according
to the risk nature of financial products involved in the transaction.

(i) Exposure to credit risk

As at 30 June 2010, the Group’s and Club’s maximum exposure to the credit risk of
financial assets as defined in note 2.8 approximated their carrying amounts in the
consolidated and Club’s statements of financial position.

(ii) Financial assets that were past due but not impaired

As at 30 June 2010, the trade receivables of the Group and Club that were past due but
not determined to be impaired according to the period past due were HK$21 million
(2009: HK$9 million). The overall impact of trade receivables on the consolidated and
Club’s financial statements is insignificant because the Group’s principal businesses are
transacted in cash with customers. The trade receivables mainly relate to the
Membership business where the credit risks are assumed by a licensed bank under an
affinity card agreement. All the receivables are due within one year.



35. MHmMEREE (@)

35.2 EXEERE

SEEEEANRE ERRESENSHEKLE

RED - fET

— ATREMSBEUALBESRE BRER
BARERBBRZE  HHSFEHER AR

- XFEENBRERREEFAER -

SETHERAEER BB AR KA RAE

mBE URRUEBAGETES UEERRA

X HHESELBEENEEE -

353 DN FPEEME
ERBMBREEREIRRE UL FEEFED
EMITEARTIAFEEFEREHKE -
TR RERHEBEAQAFEEFERERELE
MY B R B A AR B 0 48 o
B EARRREBRTSHHEBERMT AN
HRECRERAB)FHIAEN L FEE-
FR2: EFARXREBTSHECLEMTEN
HRE IMEEEHAEEHEENRE
ERBUEETSBBENEERLHE
QP EE-
KR EFHEZEHMABEITIREAEETRS
HENGEERLIENAFEE-
EREVHENERRILZRGH 58
L FAALT ETERBEIEEANEES
MZERERARBATFRZGELEETHNERNE
RHERGE  BETSRERERE-
TRERINRZ=ZO—OFXA=ZT+THUATE
EAENEEEE -

35. Financial risk management (Cont.)

35.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to

continue as a going concern in order to

— provide a variety of world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making
contributions in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and

— support the Group's stability and growth.

The Group monitors its capital which is same as the total equity shown in its statement of

financial position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the

form of donations through the Trust.

35.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure for financial instruments that are measured at fair value by

level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the

lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any significant input is
not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis.

The following table presents the Group’s assets that were measured at fair value as at
30 June 2010:

£ @ Group
#R A1 R Bl2 #R B3 F
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE Assets
BERESRE Contingency Fund investments
AREENKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
KRE Equities 5,453 — — 5,453
BEKE S Debt securities = 3,434 — 3,434
TTEEMIE Derivative financial instruments (66) 25 — (41)
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios
AREENKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
RE Equities 3,257 — — 3,257
BRFS Debt securities — 4,135 — 4,135
SERE Alternative investments 71 — 2,316 2,387
fTESRITAE Derivative financial instruments 2 91 — 93
BERFEHEAS Debt securities portfolio
AREEMKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
BEEES Debt securities — 1,195 — 1,195
RAFEEZRERIIRNIKERE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss — 206 — 206
HtREBEE Other current assets
fTESBT A Derivative financial instruments — 7 — 7
8,717 9,093 2,316 20,126
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35. Financial risk management (Cont.)
35.3 Fair value estimation (Cont.)
During the year, there were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2.
The movements of the balance of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
fair value based on Level 3 were as follows:

£ @ Group
BEER in HK$ million #zE Total
R Y 45 R Opening balance 2,480
EUTHRERERN N E R EHIEAEE Total gains and losses recognised in
2= & Income statement 48
A6 Statement of comprehensive income (387)
BB A Purchases 471
HE Sales (296)
HR 4Rt A Closing balance 2,316
FRFTARBZREFIERFRERRBAREAS Total gains or losses for the year included in income statement
Bt (BER)NWWANEELE and presented in surplus/(deficit) from securities investments
and long-term investment portfolios 48

EBRPAEENEERBERFATTARZER
WHERFRERRPREAS RS (BR)
By U 25 o B 18 42 R

Total gains or losses for the year included in income statement for
assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
and presented in surplus/(deficit) from securities investments
and long-term investment portfolios -

36. LLEHTF
FERBERRGEEHEREBRAE THBREZT
EFENIHE - EFSIBLALRET  WE
EEEFFERAFENEENES -

36. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of cash flows. These reclassifications have no impact on the
results or equity for the prior year and current year.
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Subsidiaries

The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2010:

Effective
percentage
Issued and fully paid up share held by the Club
Principal activities capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
Incorporated in Hong Kong,
limited by share capital and
wholly owned:
HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited  operates the horse race betting business 200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
HKJC Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business 1,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
The Jockey Club Membership manages Members' social and 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
Services Limited recreational facilities
The Hong Kong Jockey Club acts as administrator for staff 2 ordinary shares of HK$10 each 100
(Managers) Limited retirement benefits scheme
HKJC Racing Club Limited manages the Racing Club’s operations 10,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
The Racing Club Horse manages the HKJC Racing Club Limited’s 10,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
Management Limited horse related activities
HKJC Business Ventures Limited holds the equity interests of the 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
Group’s overseas business ventures
HKJC Business Ventures (China) holds the equity interests of the 500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
Limited Group's business ventures in China
Limited by guarantee and wholly
controlled:
The Hong Kong Jockey Club acts as nominee for selected projects — 100
(Charities) Limited and holds investments in the Beijing
Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse
Limited, on behalf of The
Hong Kong Jockey Club or The
Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
Incorporated in Bermuda, limited
by share capital and wholly owned:
HKJC Reinsurance Limited insures the Group against certain risks 120,000 shares of US$1 each 100
and exposures
Incorporated in The People’s
Republic of China, limited by
registered capital and
wholly owned:
Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club manages Members’ social and US$65,000,000 100
Clubhouse Limited recreational facilities
Beijing HKJC Technology provides computer hardware and US$10,000,000 100
Development Limited software technology development
and consulting services
Guangzhou HKJC Race constructs and operates an RMB330,000,000 100

Horse Training Limited

equestrian competition venue,
supporting and training facilities in
Conghua City, Guangzhou



Consolidated Statement of Financial Results for Full Racing Season
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BEET in HK$ million 2010* 2009*
R FHEE Amounts wagered by customers 120,780 108,357
BEREFIRA Betting and lottery revenue 21,788 19,994
BEHRRESELH Betting and lottery duty (13,803) (12,627)
150 F o ith B S B Payment to racing jurisdiction outside Hong Kong (41) (32)
REHS Lotteries Fund (956) (964)
RS Net margin and commission 6,988 6,371
H g X Other revenue 1,971 1,786
8,959 8,157
FES—I N Operating costs (6,362) (6,085)
PGz 23 Operating surplus 2,597 2,072
FRA B k= Interest income from deposits 23 75
BERERRUBREAESNERS (FE) Surplus/(deficit) from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios 838 (1,151)
BRESRENERL (HEB) Surplus/(deficit) from Contingency Fund investments 80 (1,157)
B 75 & Finance costs (61) (28)
BB (EE) Financial surplus/(deficit) 880 (2,261)
e AN | =] Share of loss of an associate (8) (23)
it HEIEGEREE Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity (25) —
HIKRFBIE BIBEEEETESEERIAR Surplus/(deficit) before taxation, charitable donations to
ERTHERESAINRE (FHE) Charities Trust and transfer to Contingency Fund 3,444 (212)
BRFEEEESRE Appropriation to The Hong Kong Jockey Club
EREd Charities Trust
—BRES — Allocations Fund (1,100) (500)
—EFXEE — Capital Fund (400) —
MRBIAT R R (BE) Surplus/(deficit) before taxation 1,944 (712)
FiE Taxation (295) (238)
BEARGRENTERES (58) Net surplus/(deficit) after appropriation and taxation 1,649 (950)
ERTFERES Transfer to Contingency Fund (80) 1,157
REBEHEBAZREHE Retained surplus transferred to Accumulated Reserve 1,569 207

N

..

* BZHEE-B=TEKHEI(ZO—-—O0F: N\
=REE, ZOORFE £+ NRESE)-

=+ 3

* Refer to note 1 on page 130 (2010: 83 race meetings, 2009: 78 race meetings).

171



172

Summary of Operations
EHBE

EEERERE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Group
BEERKE®RE Racing and betting facilities
BEBT in HK$ million 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
ESBEYETRILRE Amounts wagered by customers
on horse race betting 75,497 66,820 67,685 64,000 60,050
ESEYEEREN Horse race betting dividends
and rebates (63,056) (55,583) (56,221) (53,040) (48,806)
EEEEZRA Horse race betting revenue 12,441 11,237 11,464 10,960 11,244
EEREEH Horse race betting duty (9,002) (8,120) (8,286) (8,039) (7,943)
FF Hhith B B4 Payment to racing jurisdiction outside
Hong Kong (41) (32) (30) (22) (39)
ESHEMAF Horse race betting net margin 3,398 3,085 3,148 2,899 3,262
EREBEERTRIARE Amounts wagered by customers
on football betting 38,908 35,108 34,442 30,190 31,272
BRBEELSE Football betting dividends (32,494) (29,308) (28,238) (24,764) (26,157)
BIREBEWA Football betting revenue 6,414 5,800 6,204 5,426 5,115
RBIREEH Football betting duty (3,207) (2,900) (3,102) (2,713) (2,558)
EIREEAF Football betting net margin 3,207 2,900 3,102 2,713 2,557
REBRERIAT Amounts wagered by customers
on lottery 6,375 6,429 6,382 6,589 6,293
RERS Lottery prizes (3,442) (3,472) (3,446) (3,559) (3,399)
LHUIA Lottery revenue 2,933 2,957 2,936 3,030 2,894
BEEEH Lottery duty (1,594) (1,607) (1,596) (1,647) (1,573)
REED Lotteries Fund (956) (964) (957) (988) (944)
REMAE Lottery commission 383 386 383 395 377
HAhF WA Other net revenue 933 727 658 544 500
PR g Total operating income 7,921 7,098 7,291 6,551 6,696
HELERAK Direct operating costs (4,410) (4,224) (4,195) (3,873) (3,457)
I 38 2K Miscellaneous donations (62) (50) (64) (3) (5)
HE - #e  BERTH Depreciation, amortisation,
impairment and write-offs (767) (667) (696) (658) (595)
R CS PN Total operating costs (5,239) (4,941) (4,955) (4,534) (4,057)
48 B Operating surplus 2,682 2,157 2,336 2,017 2,639
B BER (&) Financial surplus/(deficit) 1,442 (2,258) 2,821 3,209 1,958
BATEEERTRLESE Appropriation to The Hong Kong
(BT -%A Jockey Club Charities Trust
—BRES — Allocations Fund (1,100) (500) (880) (650) (700)
—&EXRES — Capital Fund (400) — (900) (700) (1,100)
MBI EER S (FiE) Surplus/(deficit) before taxation 2,624 (601) 3,377 3,876 2,797
BASZELHHNBEHRERS Unclaimed prizes transferred to
the Snowball Pool 68 65 102 74 66

LY FEREES(ZO-—OF  2FEN+T=ZRE
B, Z00NE - ZO0ONEFE - Z00tHFR=
OOARF: 2FLt+/VRESE)  BREEUK S
BRRENBRBAIEE -

The above figures represent the results before taxation of racing (full seasons, 83 race
meetings for 2010, and 78 race meetings for 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006), football betting and

Mark Six lottery.
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The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited

BERE Membership facilities
BEEBT in HK$ million 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
2= Income
ZEey Membership subscriptions 166 160 156 192 156
BEREKBER(FB) Catering surplus/(deficit) 7 (6) 6 2 (1)
Hih B REL W Other non-catering income 32 32 31 27 26
BRER—SBA8ER Development income—
SEERE Member’s entrance and
qualification fees 81 80 75 92 85
286 266 268 313 266
SEEEHEETHRIE Direct membership
administration costs (214) (179) (161) (161) (152)
EREH Depreciation and write-offs (87) (72) (59) (52) (49)
(301) (251) (220) (213) (201)
K (Fi18) Bk Operating (deficit)/surplus (15) 15 48 100 65
B 7% B &R Financial surplus
—RREESRKA — Development Fund 5 15 24 50 29
—FEREESKRA — Non-Development Fund 6 9 26 32 20
BRELAT (B518), Bk (Deficit)/surplus before taxation (4) 39 98 182 114

R=ZO-—OFARA=+H EFESEEHEAR
AFEAFEATNE-—FT=ZEEERT(=Z00
hE: TERBATNAEERT)  BEYE RE
RENTEZLtHEEBT(ZOOAFE: NESE
TEHEBT) RHREAEGTEBRL(Z0O0ON
FABETHEERRT) EEREEELEE
BT(ZOONE: —BHEBRT) RBEERRE
ATEEEBER(COONE - AELT=BE%
) RERBEE—RBRAETEEEBET(=00
hE: —EBARFTREBBT)

The net assets of The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited at 30 June 2010 were
HK$1,812 million (2009: HK$1,768 million), including property, plant and equipment of
HK$407 million (2009: HK$405 million), long-term investment portfolios of HK$1,000 million
(2009: HK$954 million), deferred tax assets of HK$5 million (2009: HK$2 million), current
assets of HK$555 million (2009: HK$573 million), less current liabilities of HK$155 million

(2009: HK$166 million).
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Statistical Summary
St B w

BE Racing
2010* 2009* 2008* 2007* 2006*

EFHHAE Race meetings
BB X Day meetings 47 47 46 46 44
BERE Night meetings 36 31 32 32 34
HORE Total number of meetings 83 78 78 78 78
HinEEHH Races on turf 691 655 652 642 617
ERIREWEEFHH Races on all-weather track 76 78 78 84 91
4815 B Total number of races 767 733 730 726 708
B Horses
BT HEEARE Total runners 9,736 9,179 9,136 9,083 9,018
BH-—S5EBE=ETHAE Horses winning 1 race 328 279 344 305 279
BEMEESETHE Horses winning 2 races 119 120 108 114 132
BH=8BE=ETHE Horses winning 3 races 39 43 41 37 34
BH=85 U LtEEETHA Horses winning over 3 races 18 19 11 18 13
BHEEETHE Horses with winnings 504 461 504 474 458
AREBHBEEEBEANEETHE Horses not winning — placed 397 420 364 387 372
AEBHBEEINEBANEFTTHE Horses not winning — unplaced 374 324 256 293 321
REHEFTHHE Horses not raced 260 255 246 201 186
B Total horse population 1,535 1,460 1,370 1,355 1,337
BEBT Retirements 400 360 322 338 SIS
BEERS Prize money
REHBE(HEEBT) Total prize money (HK$ million) 782 763 718 685 678
FSEFHES (FTHET) Average prize money per race (HK$'000) 1,020 1,042 983 944 957
BEFIES (FTET) Average prize money per horse (HK$'000) 509 523 524 506 507
FABRGREFTHET Percentage of horses winning

HHEEIL prize money in the year 64% 64% 68% 68% 67%
FAERSREET(HHEST Percentage of individual runners winning

HwWHEEDL prize money in the year 77% 78% 83% 80% 78%
FAREBEAEFEASES Percentage of horses recovering

REFETCHEH L basic costs or more in the year 38% 38% 43% 43% 42%
EFEBFIHIABAE(T) Average attendance per meeting ('000)
55 i Happy Valley 17.5 17.7 17.3 17.4 17.3
W H Sha Tin 28.2 29.3 29.6 29.5 28.3
EERIB(HEERBT Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
LB Standard bets 64,884 57,114 57,850 54,433 50,242
4% B St Exotic bets 10,064 9,310 9,749 9,567 9,808
B E R Fixed odds bets 549 396 86 = —
FOR G Total 75,497 66,820 67,685 64,000 60,050

* 2EREHRAEN

* Racing statistical data is for full seasons



[ F Financial
BEBT in HK$ million 2010* 2009* 2008* 2007* 2006*
244 B B R Payments of duty and taxation

to Government
EEELH Horse race betting duty 9,002 8,120 8,286 8,039 7,943
EREEH Football betting duty 3,207 2,900 3,102 2,713 2,558
REBEH Lottery duty 1,594 1,607 1,596 1,647 1,573
BB Profits tax 295 238 242 245 331

14,098 12,865 13,226 12,644 12,405

REFBRBEBLAES Donation in lieu of Entertainments tax”

to The Community Chest of Hong Kong 3 3 3 3 3

fRERBE-AN=ZENA-BERE-5S
BEEEERNRAEBRENTEASERE
ERENGES BRPTEE=00=5=A=
T—H HEBHE-O—="fF=A=+-—
H o

Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed to

donate sums equivalent to Entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The
Community Chest of Hong Kong for ten years up to 31 March 2003, subsequently

extended to 31 March 2012.

2R Membership
HAAB=+H as at 30 June 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
EBEFEEEAY Number of Hong Kong
Jockey Club Members
B2 Full Members 13,635 13,382 13,238 13,013 12,890
2EFE(S) Full Members (S) 187 189 193 191 189
EERHEMEE Racing and other Members 7,674 7,429 7,115 6,769 6,444
REEE Absent Members 4,792 4,771 4,705 4,725 4,631
AT S Corporate Members 171 168 162 155 152
26,459 25,939 25,413 24,853 24,306
HEREEEAY Number of Racing Club Members
mREes Racing Club Members 450 358 275 — —
AEBE A Number of Mainland Members
BAEE Individual Members 345 169 40 = =
NEEE Corporate Members 40 17 12 — —
27,294 26,483 25,740 24,853 24,306
$EEES Group employees
RAB=1+H as at 30 June 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
25 Full-time 5,310 5,303 5,137 4,626 4,429
R Part-time 20,981 20,956 20,163 20,313 20,135

* 2EBELTEN

*  Racing statistical data is for full seasons
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